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{ vrom the ""eakly “egister, Pt. Tleasant, ason Co. ™, Va. JJan. 27, 1876
George W, Tiprett, wditor. forepared for the Degister:)

T™he region of the country occuriad by the Point Pleasant Church,
from the Aate of 1its orzanization, up to the time at which first, the
rPuffalo Church, and then others were organired, stretches over a large
" part of “ason county, and extenis also into Putnam, on both sides of
the ¥anawha Piver, from the mouth to Red House Shoals.

Tn 'fason county, this field incluies within its bounds, the ‘
ITpper or Nutch Wlatts - Tover or Pleasant Tlatts - Point Pleasant and
fercer's Bottom.

After the signal victory gained by the whites unier the comrand
of Seneral tndrew T,.ewis, over the ccabined forces of the red zen, led
by the celebrated rhisf Cornetalk, 17th of Nctober 1774; this rart
of tha\country may_ be considered as having been orened for settlement
by the whites. Rut the stirring times of the revolution, no doubt
delaved the rapid settlement of the fertile region.. Those .gallant
men who by their valor contributed to the success of that engagement,
and who survived the contest which cost the life blood of their
conrades, bore back to their native homes, east of the Alleghanies,
glowving accounts of this inviting land; as a consejuence, We find
that early in the present century, many who-either in person, or by
their names took part in the battles of Point Pleasant, sought honmes
in the Valley of the Areat Yanavha, or on the 2hio, near where the

former river is lost in the latter, ’ : : A

~ Their friends ani neighbors were also induced to follow their
exanple. As a natural result, it is found that those counties in
what is now the old State, that furnished trocps for the campaign,-
of which the battle of Point Pleasant was a rart, have in this
comparatively new country, many families vhose nanes are still to
be found in those oldar counties. Pfugusta, Rotetourt and other -
nortions of the vallev not only contributeid their part tovards giving
a quietus to the Tniian warfare, but they also furnished nany 2
fanilies, by whose versevering industry this country has been '
‘changed from the 4=nse forest to the well cultivat=d lands of the
‘nresant day. 3 ; ; :
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The history of all these families that settled this region
would prove a subject of no little interest to us.: B
mhis country was but rartially settled before the beginning
of the present century. A few farilies, it is true, had been brave
enough to make the effort to settle in a new and exposed country;
but it was not until after there was no foe with bloody tomahawk,
and savage yell to keep the axe and rifle near enough to each other
to be exchanged at a moments warning, that settlements begzan to multiply.

A history of these early settlers zand their settlements would
be, to some extent, a history of the point Tleasant Presbyterian
church, for althouzh nany of them and their descendants assisted -in
the unbuilding of other “ranches of the christian church yet with
a complete roll of the earlier settlers of this couniry, 1t would be
founi that many nemes are the same on both. The loss of the old
tacord book of our church is seriously felt, for that wculd enable
us to cdmrlete the roll of origzinal members, znd also yprerare such
statistics as mould showr all the additions that have since been made,

the transfers of membars to other churches, snd the losses by deaths.
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Thus »ould we be furnished mith a comylete history, so far as the
names of our members are concerned,

Tn a brief history of the church, rrerared in 18581, to serve
2s the beginning of the sessional racords of Ruffalo Church T . find
this statement: n"A few Presbyterian families settled in the Valley
of the Great ¥anawha River, it is believed, between the years 1810
and 1820. They had occasional services, from RPev. ¥r. Calhoun,:
pastor of the ¥anawha Church, and Dr. J. “c%lhenny of Tewisburg,
and perhaps other ministers, as they passed throuzh the country.n

There was however, no Presbyterian orzanization below Charleston
- unptil the year 1835, 'nder the ministry of the Rev, Frances ﬁutton,
the Church of Point Pleasant was fcunded.

These gfforts at building up our church in that rortion'of the field
seemed to have been separate and apart fronm thoSe conflnpd te the regions
round about Point chasant. ] ;

As early as 1815 Rev. w‘. Gould pastor of the Drasbytorﬂan
Church at Gallirolis, ﬂhio commenced preachinﬂ occasionally in what is
now the tarritory covered by the Point Pleasant and Pleasant Flatts
churches, and in 1218 he commnenced the regular ministration of the
Word. Tn a brief history of Presbyterianism in our bounds, prepared
and reported to Presbytery April 10, 1841, it is said of Mr. Gould,
"gis labors were blessed, and an 1mprossion made highly favorable to
Presbyteriamism." Some ten or twelve members were received and their
names enrolled in the church at Gallipolis.. Tn 1825 ¥r. Gould left
the oounty. , , : R xS :

' fle was succeeded at Fallipolis, nl, by the Rev. ¥r. Rrooks (father
of Dr. Brooks of <t. Touis) who continued to preach one fourth of his.
time at Point "leasant. Yr. Rrooks was succeeded by Rev. Fisher,

~* who for one year continued to rreach at Point Tleasant one " fourth of

his time. Then the church at %allipolis became vacant, and continued
so for some time, and this rogion of country was Without regular
Presbyterian preaching. Tn those days there were no church edifices
in this country and private houses, schoolhouses, or barns were
~occupied, and frp"upntly a rustic arbor was constructed, which served :
in good weathnr as a plnasant tlaca to meet and Worship God.

The house of r. camuel tlexander, near Arbuckle Creek and -
“that of Mrs. Couch, on the opnosite side of the river sprved as
preaching placos.

: If ]OU will visit the cemptery in Point Pleasant, a short

Aistance from the gate and on your left you may now spe a dark brown
grave stone pointing heavenward. Upon it you will find this ..
inscription: "The body of Francis Nutton lies here; born June 28,
1730 and was licensed to preach the Gospel by,Lexington Presbytery
in Nctober, 1826, We commenced his labors in this region of country
in the fall of 18%4, and was ordained to the full work of the
ministry in 1835. Ua was called away from his work on the 15th of

' August, 1833,

~Faithful in "is Yaster's cause, death had no terror to him.‘
This corruptible must put on -ncorruption and this mortal must rut
on inmortality.”
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In the "history" above referred to, it is said of 'r. Nutton:
"Ja soon cained the confiience of the ieorle ani exertedi a hapry
influence among them, anl in 1875 the Point Pleasant) church
was orgzanized and 14 memnbers received.” The members so far as T
cm learn were: : : :

; ¥icheel “ouns, 2r.and wife; *fichael Vouns, Jr, and wife; ¥rs,-
Nancy Yawkins; Yrs. Yarriet Amsden; Yrs, Rliza Tewis; Yrs. Sarah -
couch; rs. fanuel Alexander; Yrs. *lizabeth Alexander; irs. ¥incaid;
“fr. Jamnes 'fitchell and wife; frs. Tleanor Hale. ;

m™he field occupied by this minister was very extensive. He
preached recularly in what is now the Puffalo and Arbuckle fields;
Point Pleasant: the T,over and Tprer Flatts; extending for many miles
“up the Nhio River ; and occasionally went as far as Ravenswood, a
jdistance of about 50 miles, above Point Pleazsant. At one of his
protracted meetings near Ravenswood, he received into the church
one medber who now resides in the Torer Flatts, and who was an
* original member of the Pleasant Flatts church at its organization.

e have not been able to get hole of statistics to show the.
actual incrrase of membership during the ministry of this faithful
servant of God; but we ¥now that "many were added unto the Church."

Tt was during his ministry that the first preshyterian house
of worship, was erected in this field. This is known as the 0ld
Rrick rhurch, Pleasant ¥latts. There is now nothing left to indicate
its situation; but crumbled bricks and a few grave stones, marking.
the resting prlace of those sho were buried in the church yard., This
church was built in 1837. i ‘

Tt was also during “r. Dutton's ministry that a church; the
 first church was erected in Point Pleasant. It was built for the -
w. ¥, Church: but it was occupied by other denominations. This is
still standing, and has for two periods been occupied by the
oresbyterian congregation, when they were without a place of worship.

wrr. Dutton's ministry closed with his death in 1839, and many
of his peorle, still living, speak of that event as casting such a -
~gloom over them that they were in despair of ever getting another .
such minister. 4 '

The field was not vacant long, for in the latter rart of the
same vear Rev. Robert Nshorne "succeded him in his wide field. The
labors of ¥r. Nsborne continued from 1839 to 1855, and during that
long period, was the only presbyterian minister who labored regularly
in “fason County. During this time two rresbyterian church edifices
wape erscted. Nne in the Nutch or TUpper Flatts, 12 miles from
point Pleasant, in 1850, knovn as the '"hite Church'!'; the other in
Point Pleasant, in 1853, now kno'n as the "nld °resbyterian Church".

Tn 1855 r. Nsborne resizned the Pastorate of the church, and was
succeeded in the autumn of the same year by Pev. G. S. "oodhull, who
¢'ommenced rreachinz regularly one Sunday in four at the town of
~uffalo on the nreat vanawha, twenty two miles above Point Pleasant
thus transferring the A rbuckle appointment to that place.

Thére the Tresbyterian congregation worshirped in fhe Yethodist
Tpiscopral Church, “outh, until Puz. 22, 1857 when they dedicated

their new and commodious brick church to the worship of plmighty ~od.
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At the ¥all meeting of Areenbrier Presbytery in 1860 a yetition
was rezularly presented, asking for the formation of a church at
Ruffalo. Tt was favorably condidered and a committee, ccomposed of
Rev. Yr. Woodhull and ®lder J. D. Thompson, was arrointed to
orzanize the church,

n the 2th of Necember, 1860, the day aprointed, elder J. D,
Thonpson not being ahle to attend, was represented by elder R.
Mitchell who, with the other member of the committee, orzanized the
church with twanty members, all of whom were dismissed from Toint
Pleasant church.

Puling elder Samuel Couch, vho had been for some time an elder
in the Point “loqsant church was elected and install=zd an elder
in the Ruffalo church

¥r, R. 9, Sterrett was at the same time elected, ordained and
installed as a ruling elder and 2. RB. 2lexander as a deacon. The
church was then declared Auly organirzed, 2t the meeting of Presbytery
in Yay 1861, at ¥anawha Salines, this action of the committee was
approved and the Puffalo church was addad to the roll of the .
;reenbrzpr Prnsoytpry. N i

; The following are the names of rersons dismissed from Podt

Pleasant church to join Ruffalo church: R. H. and Catherine Sterrett,

camiel and Sarah Couch, Samuel and Flizabeth Alexander, A. B. and

raroline Alexander, R. F. and Rebecca Puffner, George W, and Sarah

R Pl ”raig Mrs. Francis Bright, Miss Mary J. Craig, Wr%. Fannie "hite,
- Y¥rs, Mary Donally, Mrs. f‘atharinp Deem, "rs. w?liza Rryan, John and
@1llen YcChesney.: 3!

ruffalo church was surplied by Rev. ﬂ. o, Woodhull until arch
1861. It was: then suprlied by Pev, “'r. Meely for three months, after
which it was vacant until visited by ?ev. Jd. 0. Barr, (cteber 15, 1835,

Presbytery met at Ruffalo, *ay 4, 18668 and aprointed Rev. J. C.
Rrown to labor in the ¥anawha Valley for one year. He suprlied
uuf*‘alo two Qabbath.a month till vay, 18674

The labors of r. moodhull in the Point Pleasant church °nd°d
in the fall of 1882 and Pev. NDavid Thompson of Tennessee now a
missionary in Japan, preached in the churches of the Flatts and Pt.
Dleasant during the summers of 1852-3, Tn 1864 he was succeeded by
Pev. M, T,. Todd who continued his ministrations until 1866. During.
the ministry of r. Todd, the church at Pt., "leasant was divided;
and prart of the members recolvod as a church, into the Presbytery
of Mest Virginia, Synod of Pittsburgh, mhilst the others remained
as they had been, in connection with “rppnbrlnr Drnsbytery, Synod
of Virginia.-

: tbout the same time, or rhaps a little later, a church vas
orzanirzed in the TTpper Vlatts, in connection with the Presbytery
of Test Virginia. Tram that time to the present there have been

tmo-”rcsbytcrlan churches in this field.

Tn TJune 1807 arrangpments were made with Rev. B. B. Rlair, to
suonly the churches of Toint Pleasant and Ruffalo by ziving to each
half his time. CShortly afterwards he was installed as Pastor of
thase churches and continued as such until the date of his death,

June 19, 1871.

~



. During his m- nistry the ccngregation occuried the bui Aing of
the 'fethodist Triscoral Church, South, but at the samne time the rlan
of building a new church was vigorously jrosecuted, and before his
Aeath the work had bern well nigh comjleted.

The necessity for building a new church arose from the fact
that v process of law, the right to the ¢ld church passed into
+he hands of the church in connection mith the Presbytery of "est -
Virginia; and our peorle who assisted in' erecting the 0ld church not
only lost their right to worshir in it as their own, but they 4id
not receive anything in the way of comr=n:ation for that loss.

fr. Rlair's minist iy continued for about four years.. Tn that
time he endeared himself very much to the people, "hilst he
preached regularly at nt. "leasant and Ruffalo h2 also rreached -
occasimnal in the Plezsant Flatts, and there gathered into the
church some members. Ye labored fully ur to his strength and in
the oninion of some, far beyond it, often prostrating himself by
his excessive labors. =Rut this labor was not in vain in the Tord
for Auring his aministry thirty two members were received into the
church, of which number seventezen were added on examination. This;
so far as we have been able to learn is the most successful :
-pastorate this congregation has ever had. e

Nn the 12th of Tune,. 1871, the pastoral relation between this
church and Fev. R. R, Rlair, was dissolved, God having called him
to a higher sphere, and the church was vacant until in the latter
nart of the same year, when an invitation was extended Rev, ¥, T,.
Railey to suprly it and Puffalo. He labored in this field very S
acceptably for one year, when having received an invitation to :
Augusta, Xy. in 1872, he went to that field where he remained for
two-years. : '

mhere were no aiditions to the church during *fr. Railey's
"ministry in this field. Tn "farch, 1£€73 the present rastor commenced
suoplying this church and Ruffalo and in February 1374 noved to

this place znd comaenced nreaching regularly at Rruce's Charel,
“rercer's Rottom, and in the churches in the Tower and Upper Flatts.

An the 2rd “abbath of July, 1873, the new church was dedicated.
The sermon was rreached by Rev. W. T, Railey. "n the sare day;,; was
consummated the organization of a church in the pleasant Flatts which
®as added to the roll of churches at the fall m=eting of CGreenbrier
presbytery, next ensuing. The pastoral relation between this church
and ™, ¥, Hill was formed on the 3rd Sabbath of Yarch 1874, by Rev.
7. . Darr of Charlesion appointed by Presbytery, with Rev. J.:C.
Prowm and a ruling elder, a committee to discharze that duty.  Slnce
rapch 1872, twenty persons have been received into membership in
this and Pleasant Flatts churches, eighteen of which number was on

profession of faith.

. "hilst we are not able to give the exact increase in membership
of the church, we may have scme idea of it by the following statement

* of facts:

Tha church was orcanized in 1825 with fourteen members.




7

L

/A {
/.

) i - ""4 N a1 /
,’“Zé{(; 2oA, ek o g (S

] 6 /

™n 1880 twenty m~abers vere dismissed to form the Buffalo church.

in 1838 the church was divided in Pt. Pleisant and there are now
two “resbyterian churches in the rlace. About the sare tire a church
of over twenty members was orgenized in the Tpper Flatts, in connection
with the Presbytery of ., va., These were originally in connection
with this church. ] :

aince Ruffalo was orzanized she has dismissed about forty
members, to form Tsabella and Yt. 7ion churchs=s, which were afterwvards
formed into Arbuckle church. , :

T™n 1872 twn chirches were organized in "leasant Flatts out -aof
material belonging originally to Point Tleasant Church.

"a see from this statement that the cne church, orzanized in 1835
with fourteen members, has increased to six organizations with about
two hundred mpembers. : St : :

At the date of its organization, 1825, there was no church
edifice which we could call our own, in the bounds of the field;
since that time saven churches have been erected, all of which
are now occupied, save one, that has fallen into ruins.

: Since its organization, the church has had seven ministers
who preached regularly as nastors, or stated supplies. The average

‘.length,of time thay rerained with the church is 5 5-7 years.

Poll of the Ruling ©wlders

Wichael ¥ouns, sr., deceas=d; richael ¥Youns, jr., removed;
Pobert Yitchell, daceased; “amuel Couch, removed; ¥, W, Yartin,
removed; Abney ™. Wogg, deceased; Andrew vincaid, James Capehart,
deceased; ¥, U, Wale,-T,, ¥, Campbell, J. L. Putchinscn; J. D.
Thompson, removed. '

‘Thus have we given a brief history of this church.
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